
 

Page 1 of 4 

Notice of Meeting  
 

Surrey Local Outbreak 
Engagement Board  
 
Date & time 

 
Place 

 
Contact 

Friday, 20 November 
2020  
at 1.30 pm 

Remote meeting 
 

Amelia Christopher 
Room 122, County Hall 
Tel 020 8213 2838 
amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

 

Please note that due to the COVID-19 situation this meeting will 
take place remotely. 
 
Please be aware that a link to view a live recording of the meeting 
will be available on the Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement Board page 
on the Surrey County Council website. This page can be accessed by 
following the link below: 
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=820&Year=0 
 
If you have any queries relating to accessing this agenda please email 
amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Board Members 

 
Joanna Killian                                     Chief Executive, Surrey County Council 
Mr Tim Oliver                                     Leader of Surrey County Council  
Ruth Hutchinson                         Director of Public Health, Surrey County Council 
Mrs Sinead Mooney (Chairman)  Cabinet Member for Adults and Health, Surrey County Council 
Mrs Mary Lewis                         Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & Families, Surrey  
                                                            County Council 
Karen Brimacombe                         Chief Executive, Mole Valley District Council 
Annie Righton                                     Strategic Director, Waverley Borough Council                                                                                                 
Cllr Mark Brunt (Vice-Chairman)  Leader of the Council, Reigate & Banstead Borough Council 
Cllr Stuart Selleck                          Leader of the Council, Elmbridge Borough Council 
Dr Charlotte Canniff                          Clinical Chair, Surrey Heartlands Clinical Commissioning Group 
Sue Sjuve                                      Chair, Royal Surrey NHS Foundation Trust 
Dr Pramit Patel                          Lead Primary Care Network (PCN), Clinical Director Primary Care …                 
…                                                         Networks - Surrey Heartlands  
Gavin Stephens                          Chief Constable of Surrey Police 
David Munro                                        Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner 
Andrew Lloyd                                      Independent Chair, Frimley Health and Care Integrated Care System   
Louise Punter                                      Chief Executive of Surrey Chambers of Commerce  

 

 
 
 
 

We’re on Twitter: 
@SCCdemocracy 

https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=820&Year=0
mailto:amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk


 
Page 2 of 4 

PART 1 
IN PUBLIC 

 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 25 SEPTEMBER 2020 
 
To agree the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

(Pages 5 
- 16) 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter 
 
(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or 
(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any 
item(s) of business being considered at this meeting 
 
NOTES: 
 

 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item 
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest 

 As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of 
which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or 
civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a 
spouse or civil partner) 

 Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the 
discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be 
reasonably regarded as prejudicial. 

 

 

4  QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
a  Members' Questions 
 

The deadline for Member’s questions is 12pm four working days 
before the meeting (16 November 2020). 

 
b  Public Questions 
 

The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting 
(13 November 2020). 

 
c  Petitions 
 

The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting. No 
petitions have been received. 

 

 

5  COVID-19 SURVEILLANCE UPDATE 
 
Daily surveillance of COVID-19 data and intelligence is key to identifying 
increasing rates of COVID-19 in the community and taking prompt action 
as per Surrey’s Escalation Framework (ie deployment of mobile testing 
units, internal/external communications). A COVID-19 Intelligence Report 
for Surrey, summarising data that is in the public domain, is now being 

(Pages 
17 - 20) 



 
Page 3 of 4 

published every Monday and Thursday. In addition, 7-day cases and rates 
infographics is now being published daily. A process to support enhanced 
Local Contact Tracing data requirements is being established.  
 

6  COVID-19 LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL PLAN UPDATE 
 
The report details progress on Surrey’s Local Outbreak Control (LOC) 
Plan which was published on 30 June 2020, including key outcomes and 
milestones to date, challenges and next steps going forward.  
 

(Pages 
21 - 26) 

7  LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL COMMUNICATIONS PLAN UPDATE 
 
A communications and engagement strategy has been developed to 
support the Local Outbreak Control Plan from the 1 July 2020. The primary 
objective of the NHS Test and Trace Communications Plan for Surrey is to 
communicate Test and Trace advice and guidance to maximise 
awareness and compliance and so help contain and reduce the spread of 
COVID-19. The Communications Plan has evolved as more has been 
learnt about our public health response to the virus and this report 
provides the latest update on communications activity.  
 

(Pages 
27 - 28) 

8  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement Board will 
take place on 18 February 2021. 
 

 

 
 

Joanna Killian 
Chief Executive 

Surrey County Council 
Published: Thursday, 12 November 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 4 of 4 

QUESTIONS, PETITIONS AND PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

 
The Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement Board will consider questions submitted by Members 
of the Council, members of the public who are electors of the Surrey County Council area and 
petitions containing 100 or more signatures relating to a matter within its terms of reference, in 
line with the procedures set out in Surrey County Council’s Constitution. 
 
Please note: 
1. Members of the public can submit one written question to the meeting. Questions should 

relate to general policy and not to detail. Questions are asked and answered in public 
and so cannot relate to “confidential” or “exempt” matters (for example, personal or 
financial details of an individual – for further advice please contact the committee 
manager listed on the front page of this agenda).  

2. The number of public questions which can be asked at a meeting may not exceed six. 
Questions which are received after the first six will be held over to the following meeting 
or dealt with in writing at the Chairman’s discretion. 

3. Questions will be taken in the order in which they are received. 
4. Questions will be asked and answered without discussion. The Chairman or Board 

Members may decline to answer a question, provide a written reply or nominate another 
Member to answer the question. 

5. Following the initial reply, one supplementary question may be asked by the questioner. 
The Chairman or Board Members may decline to answer a supplementary question. 

 



19 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the SURREY LOCAL OUTBREAK 
ENGAGEMENT BOARD held at 10.30 am on 25 September 2020, remotely 
via Microsoft Teams.  
 
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Board at its next meeting. 
 
Members:  
(*Present)  
 
     Joanna Killian  
*    Mr Tim Oliver (Chairman)  
*    Ruth Hutchinson  
*    Mrs Sinead Mooney  
*    Mrs Mary Lewis  
*    Karen Brimacombe      
*    Annie Righton  
*    Cllr Mark Brunt (Vice-Chairman)      
     Cllr Stuart Selleck  
*    Dr Charlotte Canniff  
*    Sue Sjuve      
     Dr Pramit Patel      
     Gavin Stephens      
     David Munro  
*    Andrew Lloyd  
*    Louise Punter 
 
 

10/20 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  [Item 1] 
 
Apologies were received from Cllr Stuart Selleck, Gavin Stephens, Joanna 
Killian and Dr Pramit Patel. 

 
The Chairman noted that the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health would 
take over as Board Chairman after the meeting, noting the need to readjust 
Cabinet responsibilities as the Deputy Leader was unwell.  

 
In response to a query by the Vice-Chairman, the Chairman explained that he 
would not be making changes to the incumbent Vice-Chairman. 
 

11/20 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 16 JULY 2020  [Item 2] 
 
The minutes were agreed as a true record of the meeting. 
 

12/20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 3] 
 
There were none. 
 

13/20 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  [Item 4] 
 
a  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS   [Item 4a]  
 

None received.  
 
 
 

Page 5

Item 2



20 
 

b  PUBLIC QUESTIONS   [Item 4b]  
 

None received.  
 

c  PETITIONS   [Item 4c]  
 

There were none. 
 

14/20 NATIONAL UPDATE  [Item 5] 
 
Witnesses: 

 
Mr Tim Oliver - Leader of the Council and LOEB Chairman (SCC) 
 
Key points raised in the discussion: 
 

1. The Chairman noted that he sat on the National Outbreak Control 
Plans Advisory Board (NOCPAB) which was a coordinating body for 
councillors and that key information would be relayed from officers 
through the upcoming items. 

2. The Chairman highlighted that the NHS COVID-19 app launched 
yesterday and that the Government were keen for as many people as 
possible to download it. He stressed that the simple messaging of 
hands, face and space remained key and only those with genuine 
symptoms to go for testing. 
 

RESOLVED: 

The Board noted the verbal update. 

Actions/further information to be provided: 

None. 

 
15/20 COVID-19 SURVEILLANCE UPDATE  [Item 6] 

 
Witnesses: 

 
Naheed Rana - Public Health Consultant, Intelligence and Insights (SCC) 
Ruth Hutchinson - Director of Public Health (SCC) 
Andrea Newman - Director of Communications and Engagement (SCC) 

 
Key points raised in the discussion: 

 
1. The Public Health Consultant introduced the report, noting that the 

COVID-19 weekly intelligence summary produced every Monday 
provided residents and partners with regular insight and intelligence 
into COVID-19 cases within Surrey and how that compared with the 
national and regional context.  

2. She explained that the COVID-19 weekly intelligence summary 
outlined the most up to date data available in the public domain - the 
Public Health team was mindful of confidential data sharing 
agreements with agencies such as Public Health England (PHE). She 
highlighted that: 

Page 6



21 
 

 The data was shared through various communication channels 
including the Board, the Health Protection Officers Group (HPOG), 
the Surrey Local Resilience Forum (SLRF) and, Surrey Heartlands 
Integrated Care System (ICS) and Frimley ICS. She commented 
that there had been positive feedback and further questions asked 
from residents.  

 The COVID-19 weekly intelligence summary report contained the 
daily rates and data trends over seven days for Surrey’s eleven 
boroughs and districts and how Surrey ranks nationally. 

3. The Public Health Consultant explained that data, intelligence and 
surveillance was being monitored daily, allowing the Public Health 
team to assess the triggers for prompt action to be taken in line with 
the Escalation Framework and in conjunction with the Communications 
team and health partners. She highlighted that: 

 The triggers were related to cases per 100,000 over the seven-
day rate as well as the fourteen-day rate which had less variation 
due to reporting delays.  

 The fortnightly case rate for Surrey was 31.3 per 100,000, slightly 
higher than the South East rate at 25.3 per 100,000 and 
significantly lower than the England average rate of 79.2 per 
100,000. The seven-day weekly rate for Surrey was 13.6 per 
100,000 and the overall Surrey rate as well as the rates for each 
of the eleven districts and boroughs were benchmarked across 
three hundred and fifteen areas. 

 The direction of travel and speed of trends, the positivity rates, 
exceedance reporting, contact tracing intelligence post code level 
data and other sources of local intelligence were evaluated daily.  

 From the daily monitoring, situational reports were developed 
such as for the number of cases daily per age group within Surrey 
and the eleven boroughs and districts over a fourteen-day rate. 
Nationally and within Surrey, the number of COVID-19 cases for 
the 15 to 34 year age group was peaking, so the identification of 
such groups allowed targeted communications and the 
deployment of mobile testing units for example. 

 Data was available in tabulation form, through visual maps and 
interactive dashboards down to the post code level towards a 
comprehensive picture of COVID-19 cases within Surrey, 
regionally and nationally.  

 Spelthorne was recently placed on the national COVID-19 
watchlist and was being monitored by the Public Health team on a 
daily basis with a detailed picture forming over seven and fourteen 
days. In response, Incident Management Team (IMT) meetings 
with the Public Health team, Communications team, health 
partners, care sectors and boroughs and districts were called to 
decide on actions and escalations.  

 Rates were slowing in Spelthorne but were slowly rising in 
surrounding areas, so collaborative work such as looking at 
commonalities such as Heathrow with neighbouring Windsor and 
Maidenhead, Hounslow, Hillingdon was crucial.  

 As well using the data, intelligence and surveillance to manage, 
monitor and take immediate action in line with the Escalation 
Framework; work was also underway with health partners across 
Surrey Heartlands and Frimley ICS’ to develop a comprehensive 

Page 7



22 
 

approach to integrate early warning signs which included 111 and 
inpatient data.  

4. The Vice-Chairman queried that from a district and borough council 
perspective and particularly the borough of Reigate and Banstead 
which had a high number of cases and deaths in the first wave; 
whether there was any trend information available that would be 
helpful in response to a second wave. Such information would be 
useful to provide confidence to residents on the effectiveness of the 
collective response, especially as the numbers circulated by the media 
were not always fully explained. 

- In response, the Public Health Consultant explained that data and 
intelligence composed of both the number of cases and deaths 
built up from the first wave and ongoing data was being harnessed 
in collaboration with health partners to provide an insight on 
modelling for future waves. The Public Health Consultant noted 
that a more comprehensive picture was emerging from the 
lessons learnt and best practice from the first wave including the 
greater utilisation of community partners such as environmental 
health and community solutions, tailored communications 
campaigns, as well as the disproportionate effects of COVID-19 
highlighted through the Rapid Needs Assessment which formed 
part of the Community Impact Assessment (CIA). 

- The Director of Public Heath added that the Board would continue 
to be provided with up to date publicly available data, the technical 
analysis and the lessons learnt. The CIA was an important tool 
going forward with several presentations held across the system 
and partners; and provided a deep dive into ten population groups 
disproportionately affected by COVID-19. The five different 
components of the CIA would be published on Surrey-I by 23 
October 2020, a summary (CIA) could be sent to the Board and 
she noted that herself and the Public Health Consultant would be 
happy to present the findings to the Vice-Chairman’s borough 
council.  

5. A Board member noted that as an elected Member for Spelthorne, the 
daily data was useful and the COVID-19 weekly intelligence summary 
report were effective in terms of public engagement as they were 
being shared by residents. She asked whether the Public Health team 
had information on the number of online hits for the COVID-19 weekly 
intelligence summary report. In response, the Public Health Consultant 
noted that the team would have that information and it could be 
provided to the Board.  

6. In response to a Board member’s query, the Director of Public health 
explained that the Public Health team worked collaboratively with PHE 
and neighbouring public health and environmental health colleagues in 
Windsor and Maidenhead, Hounslow and Hillingdon to share data in 
order to get a fuller picture of COVID-19 transmission. She added that 
Spelthorne IMT were reaching out with surrounding Surrey boroughs 
such as Runnymede where rates were rising. At present only 
Spelthorne was on the national COVID-19 watchlist. 

7. A Board member noted the importance of the Board working 
collectively to provide consistent data and responses to residents. As 
for example there were social media posts yesterday that Waverley 
was at a raised level, which she noted did not match up with the Public 
Health team’s data. In response, the Public Health Consultant 
provided reassurance that the COVID-19 weekly intelligence summary 

Page 8



23 
 

report was taken from PHE official data which was robust and verified 
intelligence and could be used when the veracity of social media posts 
was uncertain.  

8. A Board member commented that her organisation was quick to pick 
up when there had been a press release in a particular area of 
concern due to rising cases such as Woking, Elmbridge and 
Spelthorne; with messages being sent out twice a week to around 
eight thousand businesses. She explained that she was not sure when 
to ease communications when rates started to decline as for example 
Spelthorne remained on their newsletter to businesses. In response 
the Public Health Consultant commented that the Spelthorne IMT 
collectively decided on the communications and actions to be taken.  

- The Director of Public Health noted the appropriate action to take 
was based on the Escalation Framework composed of the 
following levels: green, amber and three reds. Communications 
were being sent when cases started to increase and tip over to the 
next level of the framework. Although in the case of Woking when 
cases started to drop after a rise thank you messages were 
issued, the Director of Public Health noted that in conjunction with 
the Director of Communications and Engagement she would look 
into how best to notify the Board when areas and the subsequent 
actions were to be de-escalated - which was challenging as the 
rates were volatile. 

- The Director of Communications and Engagement added that the 
NHS Test and Trace Communications Plan for Surrey was 
constantly adapting in response to lessons learnt. She was 
mindful of de-escalation, noting an example in which the Multi-
Agency Information Group (MIG) thanking residents for their 
cooperation on social media when Woking and Elmbridge saw a 
rise in cases and to remain vigilant.   

 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Board: 
 

1. Noted the report. 
2. Would continue to provide political oversight of local delivery of the Test 

and Trace Service. 
3. Would continue to lead the engagement with local communities and be 

the public face of the local response in the event of an outbreak.  
4. Members would ensure that appropriate information on the programme 

and on COVID-19 in Surrey was cascaded within their own 
organisations and areas of influence. 

 
Actions/further information to be provided: 
 

1. A summary of the Community Impact Assessment (CIA) will be sent to 
the Board and the Director of Public Health (SCC) and the Public 
Health Consultant (SCC) are happy to present the findings to the Vice-
Chairman’s borough council. 

2. The Public Health team will provide the Board with the number of 
online hits for the COVID-19 weekly intelligence summary report. 

3. The Director of Public Health together with the Director of 
Communications and Engagement will look into how best to notify the 

Page 9



24 
 

Board when areas in Surrey and the subsequent actions were to be 
de-escalated. 

 
16/20 COVID-19 LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL PLAN UPDATE  [Item 7] 

 
Witnesses: 
 
Ruth Hutchinson - Director of Public Health (SCC) 
Jane Chalmers - COVID Director, Surrey Heartlands Clinical Commissioning 
Group 
 
Key points raised in the discussion: 
 

1. The Director of Public Health introduced the report highlighting the new 
national restrictions announced by the Prime Minister of the United 
Kingdom on 22 September 2020, noting the ever-changing situation. 
Although large announcements were made nationally on a frequent 
basis, there were often other policy changes weekly and it was the job 
of the Public Health team to keep on top of the guidance and 
incorporate it into Surrey’s Local Outbreak Control Plan (LOCP) - 
updated at least fortnightly.  

2. She explained that a key part of the LOCP informed by the data and 
intelligence was the Escalation Framework based on a RAG rating (red, 
amber and green). At one end was outbreak prevention and 
containment - light green - which was being done all the time and was 
based on test positivity and cases per 100,000, as well as raised local 
alertness - dark green - and in the middle when cases started to 
escalate and that tipped over to raised local concern - amber. At the 
other end the red category of national oversight was splits into three 
sub-levels: area of concern such as Spelthorne, area receiving 
enhanced support and an area requiring intervention.  

 The Escalation Framework was based on national COVID-19 
Contain Framework and detailed the triggers, how and who to 
notify, what the communications were, what the role of the SLRF 
was, what do when there was an outbreak, the deployment of 
testing across different settings and enforcement.   

3. The Director of Public Health noted that Spelthorne was put on the 
national COVID-19 watchlist on 18 September as an area of concern 
and an announcement was due at 11am today on whether it remained, 
as the rates were slowly decreasing. She would keep the Board 
updated of Spelthorne’s status.  

 She thanked Board members for their support and colleagues in 
primary care and GPs who within a number of hours texted all their 
patients in Spelthorne to alert them to the borough as an area of 
concern. She also noted the concentrated effort across Spelthorne 
from the environmental health team who worked closely with 
businesses - particularly in hospitality - as well as the work of the 
IMT through partnerships with schools, grassroots sport and 
children’s sporting groups, and reaching out to public health teams 
in the surrounding area.  

4. Regarding local legal powers, she explained that: 

 There was now a process in which the Chief Executive and the 
Director of Public Health at Surrey County Council could issue a 
direction under the new Health Protection (Coronavirus, 

Page 10



25 
 

Restrictions) (England) (No.3) Regulation 2020; which extended the 
powers of Local Authorities who could close individual premises, 
public outdoor spaces, and prevent specific events - such as the 
Ocean Village Boat Show 2020 and Boats 2020 in Southampton 
cancelled due to being an imminent threat to public health.  

 There was a local legal Process Guide signed off by partners 
including district and borough councils relating to steps to be taken 
before a direction on the closure of premises could be sought. As 
well as an COVID-19 events checklist for application to events 
which had dissuaded many organisers. 

5. She commented that since the last Board the concept of local contact-
tracing was new. Initially anyone that received a positive test result 
would receive a phone call or text from the national NHS Test and Trace 
service asking who the individual had been in contact with so they could 
be asked to self-isolate - around 82% of Surrey residents responded to 
and were processed by that service compared to 50% in other areas. 
Local contact-tracing meant that Local Authorities would receive the 
data of those not able to be contacted in twenty-four hours by the 
national contact-tracing service and were given local responsibility to 
contact those individuals. Evidence suggested that local numbers were 
more trusted. 

 As Spelthorne was on the national COVID-19 watchlist, Surrey had 
been put forward as the first region in the South East to develop 
that local contact-tracing service. It was hoped to be developed in 
three weeks’ time in collaboration with Surrey County Council’s 
Customer Services team. 

6. She highlighted that preventative activity was established in educational 
settings such as early years and schools, but particularly in universities 
of which there were three larger ones in the county with over one million 
students and so it was a high-risk situation and concern to local 
residents. Over the summer the Public Health team had been liaising 
with those universities which all had protocols in place based on 
national guidance and standard operating procedures. Local testing 
sites had been secured at the Royal Holloway, University of London and 
the University of Surrey. Challenges however included managing the 
night-time economy, the recent 10pm closing time for pubs and 
restaurants was a concern as there could be an increase in house 
parties and mental health issues might increase as a result of social 
isolation. 

7. She noted that COVID-19 champions were being newly introduced in 
Surrey and would be piloted shortly in Spelthorne and thanked the 
Cabinet Member for Adults and Health for her help. Those champions 
were trusted members of communities trained to give out reliable 
messages which reinforced Surrey’s communications campaigns. 

8. She also highlighted the COVID-19 marshals who were normally paid 
individuals that worked in town centre environments, Epsom and Ewell 
had marshals in different guises. The SLRF’s Tactical Co-ordinating 
Group (TCG) was working with district and borough councils to explore 
the use of COVID-19 marshals and the Public Health team were 
awaiting further guidance from the Government on their role. There was 
a possibility that some of the Government’s funding based on the 
2020/21 Public Health Grant allocation could be used to support the 
marshals.  

9. The Director of Public Health noted the new Test and Trace Support 
payment of £500 for those on lower incomes who cannot work from 

Page 11



26 
 

home and have lost income as a result. Local Authorities were expected 
to set up this self-isolation support payment scheme and be in place by 
12 October. 

10. The COVID Director, Surrey Heartlands Clinical Commissioning Group 
stressed that COVID-19 testing was a complex area and test 
accessibility was a frustration to residents and Members especially 
concerning essential workers who fell under pillar 2 and the National 
Self-Referral Portal.  

11. She described the different pillars relating to testing and which could be 
influenced locally compared to areas driven by a national process. 

 Pillar 1: swab testing of hospital patients and staff, using NHS 
hospital or PHE labs. 

 Pillar 2: swab testing for the wider population and was split into 
different parts - 

- The majority of testing in the pillar was part of the national 
process, accessed via the National Self-Referral Portal and 
tests were analysed and results produced by UK Lighthouse 
Labs. As such it is a commercial operation and there was no 
local control over the process. 

- Conversely, Surrey had local control over and was managing 
the regular testing in care homes, aided by the local Health 
Protection Team. The SLRF’s Testing Cell processed 
requests for testing which were sent to a local lab and shared 
with the care home in question.  

- Locally, Mobile Testing Units (MTUs) can be deployed 
routinely, planned in advance or at the request of the Public 
Health team such as to areas of concern like Spelthorne. 

 Pillar 3: anti-body testing, which was locally run and managed in 
the SLRF’s Testing Cell, with local labs used to process the 
tests. There was also local control over managing the 
deployment of clinics and MTUs for health and social care staff.  

- The Director of Public Health commented that where MTUs 
were deployed in areas where there was a rise, that rate 
would increase further with more testing and so deployment 
was effective. 

 Pillar 4: blood and swab testing for national surveillance run by 
the Office of National Statistics and supported by PHE and 
research and scientific partners.  

12. The Chairman agreed that the access to and speed of testing 
administered through national processes was frustrating and the hoped 
that it would improve with more testing kits available. He added that 
locally, the Public Health team and partners had done what they could 
and the SLRF continued to lobby the Government on testing.  

13. The Vice-Chairman commented that COVID-19 champions were a good 
initiative and noted that there were many local influencers in Surrey who 
were active in the first wave and on social media. He asked what the 
Board and district and borough councils could do to support the Public 
Health team and SLRF to identify both the COVID-19 champions and 
marshals. In response the Director of Public Health noted that she 
would welcome support from the Board to help identify those individuals 
and she had asked the lead of the group concerning the pilot on 
COVID-19 champions in Spelthorne to circulate the key messages to 
the Board and district and borough councils.  

Page 12



27 
 

- Regarding the COVID-19 champions, the Cabinet Member for 
Adults and Health commented that there had been a positive 
response from key community members in Spelthorne who 
wanted to be more engaged and that the Board’s feedback and 
help was invaluable. She added that it was a good initiative and 
example of best practice from other Local Authorities.   

- The Chairman concluded that he welcomed the summary from the 
lead of the group concerning the Spelthorne pilot and that it would 
useful to also circulate it to the Surrey Leaders Group and the 
Surrey Chief Executives. He added that the work in Spelthorne 
had been brilliant and it would be good to get that proactivity in 
Elmbridge and Runnymede where cases had been rising.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Board: 
 

1. Noted the report. 
2. Would continue to provide political oversight of local delivery of the 

Test and Trace Service. 
3. Would continue to lead the engagement with local communities and be 

the public face of the local response in the event of an outbreak.  
4. Members would ensure that appropriate information on the 

programme and on COVID-19 in Surrey was cascaded within their 
own organisations and areas of influence. 

 
Actions/further information to be provided: 
 

1. The Director of Public Health would keep the Board updated on 
Spelthorne’s status, whether it was to be removed from the national 
COVID-19 watchlist shortly. 

2. Board members are encouraged to help the Public Health team and 
SLRF identify both COVID-19 champions and marshals.  

3. The Director of Public Health will liaise with the lead of the group 
concerning the pilot on COVID-19 champions in Spelthorne to 
circulate a summary of the key messages to the Board, district and 
borough councils as well as Surrey Leaders Group and the Surrey 
Chief Executives. 

 
17/20 LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL COMMUNICATIONS PLAN UPDATE  

[Item 8] 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Andrea Newman - Director of Communications and Engagement (SCC) 
 
Key points raised in the discussion: 
 

1. The Director of Communications and Engagement introduced the 
report and commented that it a lot of time went by in between the 
Board’s meetings, as communications were changing on a frequent 
basis she would liaise with the Chairman on how Board members 
could be more frequently updated outside of the formal meetings.  

2. In response to the earlier query by a Board member on the social 
media posts noting that Waverley was at a raised level, she explained 

Page 13



28 
 

that she was not aware of those posts and had messaged colleagues 
on the matter. She noted that if there were future posts like that, for 
the Board member to notify the Communications and Engagement 
Manager at Waverley Borough Council; who sat on the MIG. 

3. In response to the Vice-Chairman’s earlier query on public confidence 
in relation to numbers and conflicting media reports, the Director of 
Communications and Engagement noted that communications 
campaigns provided briefs to the media as based on the figures in the 
COVID-19 weekly intelligence summary report. She reassured the 
Board that she had positive feedback from the BBC that the Director of 
Public Health was visible and noted that the Communications team 
gave regular media briefings to the BBC and Surrey Live as they 
enquired into the context of the data. She added that the COVID-19 
Communications Lead (SCC) sat on the COVID-19 Daily Data 
Monitoring meeting in order for the team to understand the data. 

4. The Director of Communications and Engagement commented that 
the Communications team were writing the NHS Test and Trace 
Communications Plan for Surrey (Communications Plan) whilst 
delivering it at same time as it was adaptive, it built on lessons learnt 
and harnessed effective approaches. In line with national guidance 
and working closely with the Public Health team, the Communications 
Plan was preventative focusing on maximising awareness and 
compliance to help contain and reduce the spread.   

 It was a sophisticated Communications Plan taking into account 
traditional methods of communications, social media, a GP text 
messaging service was put in place - she thanked the Clinical 
Chair, Surrey Heartlands CCG - and dynamic geo-targeting 
methods were used to target individuals moving across border 
and within Surrey allowing the team to follow digital footprints 
and make communications interventions when needed.  

 The team found that where there were small numbers of cases 
in a school for instance or in a locality, local residents felt there 
was an outbreak despite such situations not qualifying under the 
public health definition of an outbreak. The work of 
communications was to provide reassurance and work 
proactively. 

 The Communications Plan was split into a three phased 
approach from green coloured media infographics for phase one 
to amplify national guidance and preventative messages, to 
orange coloured media infographics for phase two which was the 
current phase for Woking, Elmbridge and Spelthorne where 
cases were increasing and it focused on warning and informing 
residents and the need for greater vigilance; to red coloured 
infographics alerting residents to high increases in infection rates 
and any local restrictions.  

 Phase two pre-empted the amber phase of the PHE COVID-19 
Contain Framework, as the Plan was focused on prevention and 
increasing vigilance. 

 Where the number of cases in Woking decreased, the colouring 
of the infographics from orange to green indicated a de-
escalation. Enhanced community engagement was effective in 
Woking such as liaising with a local imam to translate COVID-19 
videos into Bengali and Urdu which were shared via community 
WhatsApp groups, Facebook and Instagram. Out of 140,000 

Page 14



29 
 

residents in Woking, 34,000 were reached in phase two 
messaging which was a large amount and vital as Government 
guidance and language did not resonate with their communities - 
other faith colleagues were also engaged with. 

5. The Director of Communications and Engagement noted that social 
media was a large part of the Communications Plan especially due to 
lockdown and restrictions imposed and provided an update on the 
number of residents reached in Elmbridge from the issued phase two 
amber alert, approximately 65,000 residents had seen the Facebook 
and Instagram social media posts from the Communications team, 
averaging two to three times.  

6. She noted that 152,000 residents used the Nextdoor app and the 
number of residents reached through a twitter campaign was about 
5% compared to 49% via a communications campaign to all residents 
on the app. Posting on the app was free for the Communications team 
and public sector posts were given greater visibility. 

7. She summarised the social media evaluation of last month across 
Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and Google Display - visible adverts to 
residents who did online banking or shopping but were not on social 
media. Adverts across all the media platforms were tailored to 
residents depending on their demographics, postcode, venue, the hour 
of day, to ensure targeted messages. 

8. She highlighted the NHS COVID-19 app launched yesterday 24 
September. There was a large Government campaign to get people to 
use it and the Communications team stepped away from other 
graphics used in order to give information relating to the app a unique 
look, as behavioural insights evidence from the Department of Health 
showed that people were getting COVID-19 messaging fatigue. 

 The Communications team was given two weeks’ notice that 
the app was launching, so worked rapidly with businesses and 
communities to develop tailored graphics and toolkits had been 
sent out and local branding was available for districts and 
borough councils.  

 The Department of Health stressed that the app tracked the 
virus and not the individual, it and the information stored could 
be deleted at any time. It was helpful as it monitored 
symptoms, explained self-isolation and provided a countdown 
clock. 

9. The Chairman thanked the Director of Communications and 
Engagement for her detailed update on the communications 
campaigns and reassurance as the Communications Plan was 
proactive.  

10. The Director of Communications and Engagement answered a Board 
member’s comment noting that the team was looking at messaging in 
supermarkets to target residents who were not online, such as through 
till receipts. As well as working closely with the SLRF’s Resident 
Welfare and Volunteer Cell to create a database of those shielding 
and vulnerable residents particularly without digital access and how 
best to contact them. 

- The Board member responded that it would be helpful if nationally 
NHS England would let Local Authorities and health systems 
know about how they would address and contact the shielding 
groups should there be a second wave. 

- The Board member celebrated the novel tools used by the team 
and that multiple messaging to residents was useful.  

Page 15



30 
 

- The Board member added that GPs in Spelthorne were more than 
happy to help for future communications campaigns and that it 
would be useful to have pre-prepared communications in the 
future. In response the Director of Communications and 
Engagement explained that the COVID-19 Communications Lead 
had since prepared those communications scripts noting the fast-
changing environment - she would liaise with the Chairman on 
how best to keep the Board updated on the pre-pared 
communications assets. 

11. A Board member reflected that he had found the extent to which both 
the LOCP and the Communications Plans constantly adapted in 
response to feedback, the willingness of officers to review the Plans 
and reach out to partners and across Surrey’s borders, the significant 
impacts made in high risk areas and the way in which the Board’s 
membership had expanded bringing in the business voice as 
represented by the Surrey Chambers of Commerce was reassuring to 
Board members and residents.  

12. The Chairman praised the work of the Public Health team and the 
Communications team in response to COVID-19 particularly in 
addition to their business as usual work and that the Board could rely 
on the expertise of the Director of Public Health as to when areas in 
Surrey needed to be escalated and communicated with the Board and 
residents.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Board noted developments in the Communications Plan, and the 
resulting escalation activity. 
 
Actions/further information to be provided: 

 
1. The Director of Communications and Engagement will work with the 

Director of Public Health and the Chairman as to how best to provide 
more frequent communications updates to Board members outside of 
the formal meetings.  

2. The Director of Communications and Engagement and the COVID-19 
Communications lead to liaise with the Chairman on circulating pre-
prepared assets such as communications scripts to Board members 
who could then circulate them through their organisations.  

 
18/20 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  [Item 9] 

 
It was agreed that the next meeting of the Local Outbreak Engagement Board 
would take place on 20 November 2020.  
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting ended at: 11.51 am 
______________________________________________________________ 
 Chairman 

Page 16



 
 

 

Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement Board  
 

1. Reference Information 

 

Paper tracking information 

Title: COVID-19 Surveillance Update  

Author: 

Dr Naheed Rana, Public Health Consultant - Intelligence 
and Insights (SCC) 
naheed.rana@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

Sponsor: 
Mrs Sinead Mooney – LOEB Chairman (SCC) 
Joanna Killian – Chief Executive of Surrey County Council 
Ruth Hutchinson – Director of Public Health (SCC) 

Paper date: 20 November 2020 

Related papers COVID-19 Intelligence Report for Surrey 

 
2. Executive summary 

 
The national NHS Test and Trace Service was established in May 2020 in order to 
control the rate of reproduction of COVID-19 by reducing the spread of the infection.  
Public Health teams and partners are responsible for the development and delivery 
of Local Outbreak Control Plans.  
 
Daily surveillance of COVID-19 data and intelligence is key to identifying increasing 
rates of COVID-19 in the community and taking prompt action as per Surrey’s 
Escalation Framework (ie deployment of mobile testing units, internal/external 
communications). A COVID-19 Intelligence Report for Surrey, summarising data 
that is in the public domain, is now being published every Monday and Thursday. In 
addition, 7-day cases and rates infographics is now being published daily.  
 
A process to support enhanced Local Contact Tracing data requirements is being 
established. This includes Data Sharing between Surrey County Council (SCC) and 
Public Health England (PHE) and setting up data access to support enhanced Local 
Contact Tracing.  
 
3. Recommendations 

 To note the report. 

 To continue to provide political oversight of local delivery of the Test and 
Trace Service. 

 To continue to lead the engagement with local communities and be the 
public face of the local response in the event of an outbreak. 

 Members to ensure appropriate information on the programme and on 
COVID-19 in Surrey is cascaded within their own organisations and areas of 
influence. 

 
 

Page 17

Item 5

mailto:naheed.rana@surreycc.gov.uk
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/covidcases
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/covidcases


 
 

 

 
4. Reason for Recommendations 

 

 The recommendations reflect the functions of the LOEB as set out in the Terms 
of Reference. 

 
5. Detail 

 
The following information provides an overview of COVID-19 Surveillance processes 
and procedures: 
 
Daily Data Surveillance 
Public Health hold daily data surveillance meetings in order to review the COVID-19 

data and intelligence on a systematic basis and take prompt action in line with the 

Escalation Framework (ie requesting deployment of mobile testing units). The Surrey 

County Council Communications team also attend this meeting.  

 

Enhancements to the postcode level dashboard have been completed are being 
used in the daily meetings.   
  
Triggers & Escalation 
Triggers and escalation between local categories are determined by the Public 
Health team at the daily data surveillance meetings which consider early warning 
indicators and agree actions: 

 Cases per 100,000 (7 and 14 days)  

 Trend including direction and speed of travel  

 Test positivity rates  

 60+ age group cases per 100,000 

 Exceedance reports  

 Contact Tracing intelligence  

 Other local intelligence and Insights 

 Agreed actions and Notifications 
 

Surrey COVID-19 Weekly Intelligence Summary  
A COVID-19 Intelligence Report for Surrey, summarising data that is in the public 
domain, is now being published every Monday and Thursday. 
 
This report is shared with: 

 Local Outbreak Engagement Board 

 Health Protection Operational Group 

 SLRF including SCG/TCG 

 Surrey Heartlands ICS and Frimley ICS 

 Incident Management Team  

 Environmental Health Officers  
 
 
 

Page 18

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/covidcases


 
 

 

 
6. Challenges 

Surveillance and Intelligence is reported and updated daily.  We ensure data is 
reported in a timely manner.  However, it is important to note that we are also 
dependent on data release from Public Health England (and other agencies). 
 

7. Timescale and delivery plan 

 
The daily COVID-19 Surveillance processes and procedures, combined with the 
Surrey COVID-19 Weekly Intelligence Summary provide ongoing, in depth 
information to Surrey County Council and System Partners to manage, monitor and 
take prompt action in line with the Escalation Framework.   
 
The Local Contact tracing data sharing and data access should be in place before 26 

November 2020.  
 

8. How is this being communicated? 

 
Official Sensitive surveillance and reporting is shared internally with relevant 
Boards/members. The external facing intelligence is updated and published on SCC 
website on Monday and Thursday. In addition, 7-day cases and rates infographics is 
now being published daily.  
 

9. Next steps 

 

 Ongoing delivery of COVID-19 Surveillance processes, procedures and Local 
Outbreak Control Plans. 

 To establish Local Contact tracing data flow and processes.    
 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement Board  
 

1. Reference Information 

 

Paper tracking information 

Title: COVID-19 Local Outbreak Control Plan Update  

Author: 

Gail Hughes, Public Health Lead (SCC) 
07881 328236 
gail.hughes@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

Sponsor: 
Mrs Sinead Mooney – LOEB Chairman (SCC) 
Joanna Killian – Chief Executive of Surrey County Council 
Ruth Hutchinson – Director of Public Health (SCC) 

Paper date: 20 November 2020 

Related papers Surrey Local Outbreak Control Plan 

 
2. Executive summary 

 
The national NHS Test and Trace Service was established in May 2020 in order to 
control the rate of reproduction of COVID-19 by reducing the spread of the infection.  
Public Health teams and partners are responsible for the development and delivery 
of Local Outbreak Control Plans. This plan is designed to clarify how local 
government works with the national Test and Trace service, so that the whole local 
system works to contain the virus. In Surrey, delivery of the Local Outbreak Control 
Plan commenced at the beginning of July 2020. This report details progress on the 
plan including key outcomes and milestones to date, challenges and next steps 
going forward. 
 

3. Recommendations 

 To note the report. 

 To continue to provide political oversight of local delivery of the Test and 
Trace Service. 

 To continue to lead the engagement with local communities and be the 
public face of the local response in the event of an outbreak. 

 To approve the Local Tracing Partnership launch date of 26 November 
2020. 

 To approve the proposed exit plan for lockdown. 

 Members to ensure appropriate information on the programme and on 
COVID-19 in Surrey is cascaded within their own organisations and areas of 
influence. 

 
4. Reason for Recommendations 

 The recommendations reflect the functions of the LOEB as set out in the Terms 
of Reference. 

 

Page 21

Item 6

mailto:gail.hughes@surreycc.gov.uk


 

5. Detail 

 
Locally Tracing Partnership update 
Locally supported contact tracing has been renamed by Public Health England (PHE) 
to Local Tracing Partnerships.  
 
Surrey County Council Customer Services and Public Health teams are progressing 
with the arrangements to implement local contact tracing across all parts of Surrey. 
There are several critical steps that must be in place before the system can go live, 
namely signed data sharing agreement (DSA) with Public Health England, training of 
staff on the national CTAS system, and a finalised operational delivery model. While 
training of staff and signing the DSA has been progressing well, there are delays with 
aspects of the operational delivery model, such as displaying a local geographic phone 
number and DSA’s with District and Borough Councils. Displaying a local phone 
number and having a call back facility, which have been shown to have the greatest 
impact on increasing the number of successful contact tracing calls, is still being 
worked through with BT so using Microsoft Teams to make outgoing calls is being 
pursued as an alternative. Where the national test and trace service has been unable 
to contact individuals due to incomplete contact details, SCC will search for alternative 
contact numbers including those held on District and Borough Council databases. 
Work is currently ongoing to develop DSA’s with the District and Borough Councils 
across Surrey to facilitate this process. 
 
Therefore, in agreement with PHE the Go Live date has been postponed until 26 
November 2020. 
  
COVID-19 Champions  
The COVID-19 champion programme is about community activation, where trusted 
local people, community leaders are the voice for those around them, sharing 
information provided by Public Health with their friends, family, schools, workplace, 
communities and feeding back information to D&Bs about what is working well and 
what the local issues or worries are. It is intended to compliment all the other measures 
and communication being taken by empowering communities to help themselves. This 
will be borough and district led and with SCC support which facilitates management of 
the programme at a local level.  
 
A review of COVID Champion schemes in other areas has been undertaken by Public 
Health.  Due to the high rates, Surrey has worked with Spelthorne Borough Council in 
the first instance to develop an approach which can be replicated across the other 
D&Bs. Spelthorne soft launched their programme successfully on 5 November and 
officially went live on 12 November. Other D&Bs are closely following, and a Surrey-
wide steering group is likely to be established to facilitate other D&Bs initiating their 
own programmes too.  
 
COVID-19 Marshals  
All boroughs and districts have provided delivery plans for COVID Marshal schemes 
to Surrey Local Resilience Forum (SLRF). The model and scope vary depending on 
the needs of each individual area.  Activity includes employment of part time 
marshals to undertake proactive physical visits to commercial premises; supporting 
the Environmental Health COVID education, engagement and enforcement work; 

Page 22



 

increasing capacity of Joint Enforcement Teams to carry out patrols. Most councils 
are progressing well with implementing COVID Marshall / COVID compliance 
schemes, the majority opting for activities which support existing Environmental 
Health work.  
 
Care Homes  

• Infection control grant: Surrey received £19.2m of funding in the first round 
of which almost £13.7 million (71.4%) was distributed to Care homes. The 
second round of the Infection Control Fund covers the period 1 October 2020 
– 31 March 2021. Surrey is due to receive £15.8m of funding, subject to 
compliance with the grant conditions. 62% of this grant will be ringfenced for 
Care Homes and will be allocated on a per bed basis. 

• Infection control support: training and MDT support has been rolled out by 
Surrey Heartlands and coordinated and delivered to care homes via the ICPs 

• PPE: The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) has expanded the 
national portal to provide free COVID-related PPE for the majority of care 
homes and other adult social care providers. Emergency supplies can also be 
accessed via the Local Resilience Forum PPE Cell should the national portal 
arrangements fail, and urgent supply is required. 

• Designated settings: The Department of Health and Social Care has 
released new requirements that Care Homes must obtain CQC approval as a 
designated setting before they are able to accept people with a COVID 
positive diagnosis. We are currently awaiting follow up guidance. 

• Visitors to care homes: new guidance was released on 4 November by 
DHSC which states that Care homes, especially those who have not allowed 
visits since March, will be encouraged and supported to provide safe visiting 
opportunities as new national restrictions come into effect and that measures 
put in place should provide COVID-secure opportunities for families to meet 
using visiting arrangements such as floor to ceiling screens, visiting pods, and 
window visits. 

• Testing: All registered care homes should now be able to get tests via the 
national portal to enable the weekly testing of staff and the testing of residents 
every 28 days. 

 
Winter pressures  

• Hospital discharge: new national Discharge to Assess arrangements have 
been in place since 1 September meaning anyone discharged from hospital 
will receive up to 6 weeks of care and support funded by the NHS. During the 
6-week period an assessment will be completed to determine level of onward 
need and ongoing funding arrangements. We are working with health partners 
to embed this approach. 

• Care Market: work is underway to increase care capacity both in homebased 
care and residential and nursing care to ensure there is enough availability to 
meet winter demand/COVID surge. 

• Flu vaccinations: all Surrey CC staff and staff in the independent social care 
sector are being actively encouraged to have the vaccine. 

 
Contain Outbreak Management Fund 
On the 2 November the new Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF) was 
updated to increase funding for all areas of the country, to the high alert level of £8 

Page 23



 

per population head. This funding is in addition to the original £3.44m Test & Trace 
allocation. A plan is currently being drawn up as to how this fund will be spent in 
Surrey. Once completed this will be reviewed by HPOG (Health Protection 
Operational Group) / LOEB and submitted to the Regional Convenor for approval. 
 
Testing 
Symptomatic testing is available in Surrey from: 
 
Regional Test Sites  

 For drive through testing only, available in Guildford, Chessington, Gatwick, 
Heathrow and Twickenham – these are long term placements. 

 
Mobile Test Units (MTUs) 

 These test units are in locations across the county for between 3 to 7 days, 
ensuring access to testing in more areas. Drive through and walk through 
depending on location. 

 Deployed on rotation to ensure access is available in all B&Ds and in response 
to increasing rates of infection or to areas of outbreaks. 

 Technically 3 MTU’s are available to Surrey, although we have been able to 
deploy as many as 7 or 8.  

 
Local Test Sites (LTS) 

 Walk or cycle to semi-permanent test sites in areas of greater population, can 
also offer more support and some drop in testing – placement 3 to 6 months or 
longer. We aim to have these available in most Boroughs where possible. 

 Currently two operational, Guildford and Egham, more in the pipeline, however, 
the programme is currently paused by the DHSC, although Elmbridge and 
Waverley will be deployed as soon as possible outside of the pause. 

 

Home Test Kits  

 A test kit for yourself and up to 3 other people you live with. 

 Posted to your home and should arrive the day after you order it. 
 
Rapid testing update 
Lateral flow devices (LFDs) are a clinically validated swab antigen test that does not 
require a laboratory for processing and can turnaround results within an hour at the 
location of the test. Early use of this technology will enable us to provide testing to 
large numbers of people quickly. These test results will enable Surrey residents to 
have a greater degree of certainty that they are not infected or can isolate themselves 
more quickly if they are. 
 
Rapid testing coming to Surrey: 

1. Universities - All universities have been asked by the government to work in 
partnership to deliver the LFD testing programme.  

2. Residents - The government has announced plans to provide Directors of 
Public Health with access to a supply of LDFs on a weekly basis the number of 
tests equivalent to 10% of their population.  A national webinar is scheduled for 
Friday 13th November – more details regarding Rapid Testing will follow. 
 

Page 24



 

6. Challenges 

The following areas have been identified as key challenges which are summarised 
below. These are documented within the risk and issues logs for the programme: 

 There is a potential for multiple and /or complex outbreaks (e.g. a community 
outbreak). The management and response to these will require significant 
capacity/resource in key areas of the system. 

 The Test & Trace government grant received by SCC was formulated based 
on the annual PH grant basis, for which Surrey receives the second lowest 
per population head in the country. Expenditure to cover local outbreak 
requirements will therefore require careful planning. 

 There are challenges associated with winter pressures: 
o Risk to running of Test & Trace programme itself from winter pressures 

- e.g. staff becoming unavailable because of COVID-19 itself or flu / 
other winter infections, affecting either themselves or their family, or 
because of school closures etc. 

o Risk associated with impact on the programme of the interaction with 
other infections especially flu. This will have an impact on data, contact 
tracing etc and makes managing situations more difficult. It will also 
make messaging the public on symptoms more difficult. 

o Risk of increasing numbers of COVID-19 infections. Epidemiology 
suggests that a second wave will be more prolonged than the first 
wave, especially as it occurs over the winter period giving rise to 
additional pressures on the test and trace programme. 

 There are several risks associated with establishing Locally Supported 
Contact Tracing. A separate risk log has been developed which identifies 
these risks and any mitigating actions. 
 

7. Timescale and delivery plan 

 Delivery of the Local Outbreak Control Plan is ongoing and will be required 
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
8. How is this being communicated? 

 The communications strategy to support the LOC Plan is led by Surrey 
County Council Communications and Engagement Department in conjunction 
with system partners in the MIG (Local Resilience Forum Multi Information 
Group).  

 A plan for ongoing communications for all Surrey residents, as well as 
focused communications during outbreaks, is in place.  In addition, the 
process for notifying partners as per the Escalation Framework 
(internal/external) is outlined in the Communications Plan/Protocol. 

 
9. Next steps 

 
Next steps include: 

 Continue to review and update LOC Plan monthly 

 Continue to monitor COVID-19 data and surveillance daily  

Page 25



 

 Continue to drive delivery of LOC Plan through HPOG 

 Adapting any local protocols that support the high-risk settings in the LOC 
Plan to reflect new national guidance and learning 

 Continue to assess risks and implement mitigating actions 

 Undertake budget planning for new Contain Outbreak Management Fund and 
submit plans to HPOG/LOEB. 

 Continue to monitor the capacity and budget as the external environment 
changes e.g. changing COVID situation, national policy changes, etc 

 

Page 26



 

Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement Board Paper 
  

1. Reference Information   

 

Paper tracking information  

Title:  Local Outbreak Control Communications Plan Update  

Author: 

Andrea Newman, Director - Communications & Engagement 
(SCC) 
andrea.newman@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

Sponsors:  
Mrs Sinead Mooney – LOEB Chairman (SCC) 
Joanna Killian – Chief Executive of Surrey County Council 
Ruth Hutchinson – Director of Public Health (SCC) 

Paper date:  20 November 2020 

Related Papers:  NHS Test and Trace Communications Plan for Surrey 

  
2. Executive summary   

 
A communications and engagement strategy has been developed to support the 
Local Outbreak Control Plan from the 1 July 2020. The primary objective of the NHS 
Test and Trace Communications Plan for Surrey is to communicate Test and Trace 
advice and guidance to maximise awareness and compliance and so help contain 
and reduce the spread of COVID-19. The Communications Plan has evolved as 
more has been learnt about our public health response to the virus and this report 
provides the latest update on communications activity.  
 

3. Detail 

 
The Government has enforced new national restrictions in England from 5 November 
to 2 December. In line with Government guidance, we will not be publicising the 
‘Local COVID alert levels’ for the period of the lockdown.  
The Surrey County Council Communications team has prepared a number of 
campaigns to complement and amplify the national messaging:  
 

 Surrey-tailored ‘National Restrictions’ communications, asking people to 
stay at home, reaffirming Public Health preventative and testing messaging, 
and pointing to the national guidance. 

 Council Services Open/Closed simple messaging to inform residents about 
the current status of services. This should help field queries about essential 
services such as CRCs, countryside carparks and other services residents 
rely on. Because there are a number of nuances around this information the 
published assets will link back to the Surrey County Council website pages 
where full details can be accessed. 

 2021 is in our hands a behaviour change campaign to motivate compliance 
and offer hope for light at the end of the tunnel. This will be in the form of a 
series of GIFs reminding people that if we all play our part now, we can get 
back to enjoying the things we miss, such as going to the football, going out 

Page 27

Item 7

mailto:andrea.newman@surreycc.gov.uk


 

and spending time with family. This will continue to be developed thematically 
and will include looking ahead to Christmas.  

 Be Ready and Think Ahead, with the new restrictions coming into force and 
infection rates rising, this campaign asks residents to think about how they will 
get essential shopping or medicines if they are required to self-isolate. 

 
The Top Lines Brief for all members has been reinstated on Thursdays during the 4-
week period of national restrictions. As before, this brief will include the latest work of 
the LRF/SCG, links to the latest Government guidance, links to data/COVID cases 
and latest developments from key services and up to date key messages which you 
can use to update your residents. 
 
In response to the public’s increasing appetite for data and information on COVID 
rates and cases in Surrey the Communications team has been working closely with 
the Public Health team to develop a daily data dashboard which will be published 
on the Surrey County Council Website, Surrey News (for the press) and our social 
media channels.  
 
Ruth Hutchinson, Director of Public Health will be doing a weekly interview on BBC 
Radio Surrey on infection rates in Surrey and how the data changes throughout the 
national restrictions. If the data shows marked improvements we will communicate 
this with residents to help motivate and embed the behaviour changes taking place.  
 
Lessons learned exercise – Elmbridge: 
Following feedback from the previous LOEB meeting a ‘lessons learned’ exercise on 
the Elmbridge escalation was facilitated to share experiences and learnings with 
communications teams in all Districts and Boroughs. This was a successful and 
participative session which emphasised the need to prepare residents and members 
early if an escalation looks likely. However, during this period of national restrictions 
the local alert levels are suspended and all communications teams will be amplifying 
the national messages. 
 
Multi-Agency Information Group:  
The MIG continues to bring the LRF partners’ communications teams together and to 
share the above campaigns and messages across all networks and channels. A 7-
day rolling communications brief has been re-instated, following its use during the 
first lockdown, in order to coordinate and amplify the LRF communications response 
to national restrictions. 
 
Exit Strategy:  
The Communications team continues to work closely with the Department for Health 
and Social Care through the Good Practice Network and will be keeping abreast of 
the department’s plans for an exit strategy from national restrictions and what that 
means for Surrey residents. A communications plan will be developed as soon as we 
have further guidance. 
 

3. Recommendations   

 
The Board is asked to take note of the activity outlined above. 

Page 28


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 25 SEPTEMBER 2020
	Minutes

	5 COVID-19 SURVEILLANCE UPDATE
	6 COVID-19 LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL PLAN UPDATE
	7 LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL COMMUNICATIONS PLAN UPDATE

